AGREEMENT

Between

TOWNSHIP OF FRANKLIN

and

POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION OF FRANKLIN TOWNSHIP LOCAL NO. 154

January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2023



TABLE OF CONTENTS

PREAMBLE	i
PURPOSE AND INTENT	i
ARTICLE 1	1
RECOGNITION	
ARTICLE 2	
AGENCY SHOP PROVISION	
A. REPRESENTATION FEE	
B. INDEMNIFICATION	
ARTICLE 3	4
RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES	2
ARTICLE 4	
JUST CAUSE	
ARTICLE 5	
WAGES	
ARTICLE 6	9
LONGEVITY	
ARTICLE 7	1
OVERTIME	11
ARTICLE 8	12
UNIFORM AND UNIFORM CLEANING ALLOWANCE	12
ARTICLE 9.	14
VACATION	14
ARTICLE 10	10
SICK LEAVE	16
ARTICLE 11	20
PERSONAL LEAVE	20
ARTICLE 12	2
LEAVE OF ABSENCE.	21
ARTICLE 13	22
STAND-BY-DUTY	22
ARTICLE 14.	23
TUITION BENEFITS	2



ARTICLE 15	25
CONDUCTING ASSOCIATION BUSINESS	25
ARTICLE 16	26
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	26
ARTICLE 17	29
SEPARABILITY CLAUSE	29
ARTICLE 18	30
MEDICAL BENEFITS	30
ARTICLE 19	33
HOLIDAYS	33
ARTICLE 20	35
FUNERAL BENEFITS	35
ARTICLE 21	36
FUNERAL DETAIL	36
ARTICLE 22	37
EXPENSES	37
ARTICLE 23	38
PERSONNEL FILES	38
ARTICLE 24	39
MISCELLANEOUS	39
ARTICLE 25	40
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	40
ARTICLE 26	41
TERM OF CONTRACT	41
ARTICLE 27	42
CICNATUDE DAGE	



PREAMBLE

This Agreement made this 30th day of September 2019 by and between the **TOWNSHIP OF FRANKLIN**, a public employer of the State of New Jersey (hereafter referred to as the "Township"), and **POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION OF FRANKLIN TOWNSHIP LOCAL NO. 154** (hereafter referred to as the "PBA").

PURPOSE AND INTENT

The Township and the PBA desire to establish maintain and regulate all standards of hours of work, rates of pay, and all other terms and conditions of employment of the members of the PBA.



RECOGNITION

The Township has previously recognized the PBA as the sole exclusive majority representative for collective negotiations within the meaning of N.J.S.A. 34:13A-1.1, et seq., for all police officers employed by the Township, excluding Supervisory Officers, Deputy Chief and the Chief of Police.



AGENCY SHOP PROVISION

A. Representation Fee

If an employee does not become a member of the PBA during any membership year from January 1 through December 31, which is covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, said employee will be required to pay a Representation Fee to the PBA for that membership year.

- 1. Prior to the beginning of each membership year, the PBA will notify the employee in writing of the amount of the regular membership dues, which the PBA intends to charge to its members for that membership year. The Representation Fee to be paid by non-members will be equal to eighty-five percent (85%) of that amount.
- 2. During each membership year covered in whole or in part by this Agreement, the PBA will submit to the Township a list of those employees who have not become members of the PBA for the then current membership year. The Township will deduct from the salaries of such employees in full amount of the Representation Fee and will promptly transmit the amount so deducted to the PBA.
- 3. The Township will deduct the Representation Fee in equal installments as nearly as possible from the paychecks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list during the membership year in question. The deductions will begin with the second paycheck after receipt of the aforesaid list by the Township.
- 4. If an employee who is required to pay a Representation Fee terminates his/her employment with the Township before the PBA has received the full amount of the Representation Fee to which it is entitled under this Article, the Township will deduct the unpaid portion of the fee from the last paycheck paid to said employee during the membership year in question.



- 5. The PBA will notify the Township in writing of any change in the list provided to the Township and will notify the Township of any change in the amount of the Representation Fee.
- 6. The PBA shall establish and maintain at all times, a Demand and Return System as provided by N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.5(c) and 5.6, and membership in the PBA shall be available to all employees of the Bargaining Unit on an equal basis at all times. In the event the PBA fails to maintain such a system or if membership is not available, the Township shall immediately cease making such deductions.

B. Indemnification

The PBA shall indemnify, defend, and save the Township harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the Township in reliance upon salary deduction authorization cards as furnished by the PBA to the Township, or in reliance upon the official notification on the letterhead of the PBA and signed by the President of the PBA advising of such changed deduction.



RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES

- A. The Township acknowledges that employees subject to this Agreement are public employees having certain rights under the Laws of the State of New Jersey to form, join, and assist any employee, or organization, or to refrain from any activity, or both. The Township and the PBA agree that employees under this Agreement shall be free to exercise any of these rights without fear of penalty or reprisal.
- B. Two PBA Representatives plus necessary participants are entitled to attend grievance arbitration and PERC hearings. In the event that the two designated representatives or participants are scheduled for duty on the day of the arbitration or PERC hearing they shall be permitted the day off without loss of pay.
- C. Three members of the PBA and the President and Delegate will make up the Negotiation Committee and will be allowed to attend all negotiations and interest-arbitration sessions. The designation of the three members shall be made at the commencement of negotiations or the arbitration proceeding. In the event that the designated Negotiation Committee members are scheduled for duty on the day of a scheduled negotiations session with the Township they will be granted that day off without loss of pay.



JUST CAUSE

No Police Officer shall be disciplined except for just cause. "Discipline", as the term used herein, shall consist of any removal, suspension, fine, demotion or reprimand issued, imposed or effectuated upon a member.



Article 5

WAGES

A. The parties hereto agree to the following wage schedule:

STEP	1/1/2019	1/1/2020	1/1/2021	1/1/2022	1/1/2023
	3%	2%	3%	2%	3%
ACDMY	\$30,899.990	\$31,517.989	\$32,463.529	\$33,112.800	\$34,106.184
2	\$44,085.734	\$44,967.502	\$46,316.527	\$47,242.857	\$48,660.143
3	\$55,380.245	\$56,487.850	\$58,182.485	\$59,346.135	\$61,126.519
4	\$66,674.707	\$68,008.201	\$70,048.447	\$71,449.416	\$73,592.898
5	\$71,281.183	\$72,706.807	\$74,888.011	\$76,385.771	\$78,677.344
6	\$76,232.810	\$77,757.466	\$80,090.190	\$81,691.994	\$84,142.754
7	\$81,559.452	\$83,190.641	\$85,686.360	\$87,400.087	\$90,022.090
8	\$87,287.383	\$89,033.131	\$91,704.125	\$93,538.207	\$96,344.353
9	\$93,445.267	\$95,314.172	\$98,173.597	\$100,137.069	\$103,141.181
10	\$111,820.592	\$114,057.004	\$117,478.714	\$119,828.289	\$123,423.137
20	\$118,529.828	\$120,900.425	\$124,527.437	\$127,017.986	\$130,828.526

Officers hired after September 30, 2019 who must complete the Police Academy will move to Step 2 upon graduation from said Academy. Additionally, Class II waivers will receive Academy Pay until such time as said officer(s) complete the Police Academy and will then move to Step 2 upon successful completion of said Academy. Also, Officers hired with PTC Certification shall be hired at Sep 2.

B. Effective January 1, 2012 employees shall progress to Step 20 at the start of the employee's 20th year of New Jersey Law Enforcement Service. However, officers hired on or after January 1, 2012, shall not progress to Step 20 until the start of the employee's 20th year of service with the Township. It is also understood that SLEO and Auxiliary Police service will no longer count towards "New Jersey Law Enforcement Service".



However, those officers who would have progressed to Step 20 during the duration of this CNA shall be grandfathered and, thus, shall receive credit for such SLEO and/or Auxiliary service.

- C. All increments shall be based upon time of service and not made contingent upon any merit and/or evaluation system.
- D. All increases provided for in the Agreement shall be retroactive to January 1, 2019 (unless otherwise noted).
- E. The administrative assignments of Detectives, Acting Detectives, Traffic Safety Bureau Officers; Professional Services; CSU; and NPT personnel shall be compensated at the rate of three and one-half percent (3.5%) above the respective step the Officer is currently entitled.
- F. When assigned to coach a recruit the officer so assigned will be paid a five percent (5%) pay differential.
 - 1. Coaching is defined as actually training a recruit and shall not include any period when the recruit is in school.
 - 2. Recruits are defined as probationary officers.
 - 3. It is agreed that the five percent (5%) differential will begin the first day an officer is assigned to coach, except as provided in paragraphs Nos. 1, which deal with absenteeism.
- G. Officers shall be eligible for shift differential as follows (excluding detectives and Traffic Safety Personnel):

Steady afternoon shifts: \$0.750 per hour (\$1,050.00 per year)

Steady midnight shifts: \$0.72 per hour (\$1,500.00 per year)



Payment to be based on time actually on shift. Effective January 1, 2020, the annual Afternoon shift differential shall be increased to \$1,500.00 and the annual Midnight shift differential shall be increased to \$2,000.00.

Additionally, the Township shall provide for the training as well as re-training for all ESU personnel without loss of pay inclusive of satisfying the cost of said training/re-training.



LONGEVITY

- A. In addition to salaries and wages paid to police personnel hired before January 1, 2012, per Article 5, Wages, there shall be longevity payments provided according to the table herein below, which shall be effective each year following completion of the respective years of continuous service so long as no permanent policies shall have been established by the Township and agreed upon by the PBA. According to this table, each employee shall receive longevity payments based upon the following scale.
 - 1. Five (5) years of service Two and one-half percent (2.5%)
 - 2. Ten (10) years of service Four and one-half percent (4.5%)
 - 3. Fifteen (15) years of service Five and one-half percent (5.5%)
 - 4. Twenty (20) years of service Six and one-half percent (6.5%)
 - 5. Twenty-four (24) years of service Eight and one-half percent (8.5%)

In addition to salaries and wages paid to police personnel hired on or after January 1, 2012, per Article 5, Wages, there shall be longevity payments provided according to the table herein below, which shall be effective each year following completion of the respective years of continuous service so long as no permanent policies shall have been established by the Township and agreed upon by the PBA. According to this table, each employee shall receive longevity payments based upon the following scale.

Thirteen (13) years of service - Two and one-half percent (2.5%)

Seventeen (17) years of service - Four and one-half percent (4.5%)

All police personnel hired on or after September 30, 2019 shall not be eligible for longevity payments.



- B. The amount authorized in the above longevity schedule shall be in addition to the basic salary established in the police service salary schedule established in Article 5, Wages.
- C. Longevity payments in accordance with the above shall be included in the members' base pay and be included in his/her regularly scheduled compensation payments.
- D. The years of service herein shall be determined from the date the employee commenced working for the Township.



OVERTIME

- A. The Township agrees to compensate members of the PBA at the rate of 1 1/2 (DI) times the regular rate of pay for all time worked beyond his/her normal tour of duty and work period. The Officers hourly rate shall be calculated by dividing the sum of the Officers annual wages (See Article 5, wages) and Longevity percentage of which the employee is entitled (See Article 6, Longevity) by Two Thousand and Eighty (2080).
- B. It is further agreed that each member of the PBA will have the option of taking overtime in the form of compensatory time at the rate of time and one-half; it being understood that the maximum amount of compensatory time that can be accumulated at any one time by any member of the PBA will conform to the Fair Labor Standards Act. (Currently four hundred eighty [480] hours)
- C. It is understood that at the present time and at the time of this agreement, most members of the PBA are working a four (4) day on, four (4) day off shift. It is understood that the rate of overtime compensation becomes effective at an hourly threshold lower than that called for in the Fair Labor Standards Act. The 4 & 4 shift is for example purposes only and it is understood that management reserves the right to change shifts as needed.



Article 8

UNIFORM AND UNIFORM CLEANING ALLOWANCE

- A. The Township and the PBA agree that there will be an annual clothing allowance and uniform cleaning allowance. For 2019, the amount of said allowance shall be \$1,500.00. Effective January 1, 2020, said allowance shall be increased to \$2,000.00. Payment for said clothing allowance shall be made in two equal payments and shall be paid by the first day of February and the first day of October of the respective year in which it is due. In lieu of direct payment, the member may choose to deposit the allowance in two equal lump sum payments (as per dates stipulated above) to the Township sponsored Deferred Compensation Plan. An employee who separates from employment during the year (1/1-12/31) will be entitled to a pro-rated payment.
- B. A new uniform issuance allotment shall be paid in the amount of Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) for each newly hired Officer. The Officer will then be eligible for the next scheduled clothing/cleaning allowance provided the next allowance is at least three (3) months after date of hire. No probationary Officer will receive more than \$1,500.00, per 12 month period.

Effective January 1, 2020, officers hired after September 30, 2019, who are PTC-certified shall receive the \$2,000.00 uniform allowance and will not receive any additional allowance in the first calendar year of employment. Officers hired after September 30, 2019, who must complete the Police Academy shall be provided with all necessary equipment to attend said Academy. Upon successful completion/graduation, said officers shall receive the \$2,000.00 lump sum uniform allowance and will not receive any additional uniform allowance in the first calendar year of employment. Thereafter, said officers shall then revert to semi-annual uniform allowance payout in the second year of employment.

C. This schedule does not apply to other items of equipment, which are supplied by the Township.



- D. The Township agrees to replace any clothing or equipment damaged in the line of duty, not due to the employee's negligence as shown in an incident report, at actual replacement cost.
- E. All items of equipment covered by this Article are set forth below with limits included where appropriate:
 - Weapon;
 - 2. Handcuffs;
 - Flashlight;
 - 4. Nightstick;
 - 5. Leather Gear;
 - 6 Wristwatch (limit \$80.00);
 - 7. Eyeglasses or Contacts (limit \$250.00);
 - 8. Briefcase (limit \$100.00); and
 - 9. Bulletproof Vest

To be eligible for replacement items, evidence of broken items must be presented along with a receipt for the new replacement items.



VACATION

- A. During the twelve (12) month probationary period of employment, probationary employees shall accrue vacation at the rate of six point six six six (6.666) hours per month. Probationary employees shall continue to accrue vacation days at the rate of six point six six six (6.666) hours per month until the first day of January after the end of the probationary period. Thereafter, probationary employees will accrue vacation at the same rate as other employees.
- B. Upon completion of probation, a regular non-probationary employee shall be entitled to eighty (80) vacation hours per year. Vacation entitlement shall be accrued using the day the employee commences employment with the Township (including time accrued as a member of any other Department of the Township). Vacation for regular non-probationary employees will be earned at the following rate:
 - 1) For employees hired prior to August 15, 2014:

Upon completion of one (1) year 80 vacation hours per year.

Upon completion of five (5) years 120 vacation hours per year.

Upon completion of eight (8) years 160 vacation hours per year

Upon completion of thirteen (13) years 200 vacation hours per year.

Upon completion of twenty (20) years 240 vacation hours per year

2) For employees hired on or after August 15, 2014:

Upon completion of one (1) year 80 vacation hours per year.

Upon completion of eight (8) years 120 vacation hours per year.



Upon completion of thirteen (13) years 160 vacation hours per year

Upon completion of twenty (20) years 200 vacation hours per year.

- C. Vacation time will be credited and may be used by the employee as of January 1 of the year in which it will be earned. An employee may not use partial vacation hours in a single shift. The employee must have accumulated enough vacation hours to comprise a full shift as outlined within their respective division assignments. Partial vacation hours may be carried over to the following year as outlined in Section E (below). For purposes of this section, Officers will be permitted to use vacation time in increments of 50% of the Officers scheduled shift hours. (i.e. If an Officer is scheduled to work an 8 hour day, they may take 4 hours of vacation time).
- D. Any employee who leaves the employment of the Township for any reason, and who has taken vacation before it has been earned, shall reimburse, in full, the Township the cash value of the amounts paid to him/her for all unearned vacation.
- E. Any member of the PBA shall have the right to accumulate and carry over from year to year, up to two (2) years, earned vacation. No more than two (2) years' worth of vacation may be accrued at any time.



SICK LEAVE

- The existing sick leave policy of earning eight (8) hours per month for each month of service with an accumulation of up to nine hundred sixty (960) hours for employees hired before January 1, 1997 shall remain in effect during this Agreement. Employees hired after January 1, 1997 will be able to accumulate up to eight hundred (800) sick leave hours. During the first year of employment, sick leave will be earned at the rate of eight (8) hours per month of employment. Beginning in the second year of employment, each employee will be credited with ninety six (96) sick hours as of January 1 of each year to be used during the calendar year, provided that in the event an employee leaves during the year and he/she has taken more than his/her pro rata share of sick leave of eight (8) hours per month, any excess sick leave taken will be deducted from the final paycheck. If the Administrative Code is changed at any time during the term of this contract to increase sick leave benefits accrual and/or use, the employee may choose to adopt those sick leave plan amendments or to continue with those reflected herein. During the twelve (12) month probationary period of employment, sick leave will be earned at the rate of eight (8) hours per month of employment. Probationary employees will not be permitted to use sick time until they have been employed for 90 days.
- B. Sick hours shall not be used to cover time lost due to onthe-job injuries provided that the member provides evidence from a physician assigned by the insurance carrier and agreed upon by the Township Manager.
- C. Sick hours may be used for the illness of a member of an employee's household, which requires the employee's personal care and attention, not to exceed three complete shift days as agreed upon in the employee's respective division assignment. The definition of "household" shall be the same as used in F.M.L.A.



- D. The use of sick hours for illness or accidents beyond the minimum and in lieu of commencing disability income protection coverage shall be at the option of the member.
- E. Disability income program payments are to be financed through equitable shares by the Township and employee on a payroll deduction basis during the term of this contract. This is on a 50-50 basis depending on salary.
- F. Employees hired before January 1, 1997 will adhere to the following: Upon retirement or death after ten (10) full years of service with the Township, the employee or his/her designated beneficiary will receive full payment for any unused accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of eight hundred (800) hours computed on the basis of final wages at the time of retirement or death.
- G. Employees hired after January 1, 1997 will adhere to the following: Upon retirement or death after ten (10) full years of service with the Township, the employee or his/her designated beneficiary will receive full payment for any unused accumulated sick leave up to a maximum of six hundred forty (640) hours computed on the basis of final wages at the time of retirement or death.
- H. For purposes of this section, the actual retirement date shall be the date established by the Police and Fire Retirement System.
- I. Deferred retirement benefits shall not count as retirement for purposes of this section.
- J. Any eligible employee desiring to receive a lump sum payment upon retirement shall give written notice to the Township at least twelve (12) months prior to the employee's anticipated retirement date requesting such lump sum payment. In the event such notice is not given or in the event of the death of an eligible employee, this benefit shall be paid in twelve (12) equal monthly installments without interest. The Township shall have forty-five (45) days from receipt of the employee's formal Notice of Retirement Approval, or from the employee's date of death, to make final computations of the amount due. No payment under



this section shall count toward nor affect, either by increasing or decreasing, any pension or retirement benefit due the employee.

- K. 1. Effective February 10, 2015, if any PBA member works a minimum of six (6) hours in any day and then becomes ill, necessitating his/her leaving before the end of his/her shift, he/she shall be paid in full for the day. There shall be no charge against sick leave.
- 2. Effective February 10, 2015, if any PBA Member works less than six (6) hours in any day and becomes ill, necessitating his/her leaving work before the normal end of his/her shift, the entire day shall be charged against the individual's sick leave entitlement.
- L. It is expressly understood that the Township shall have the right to record all uses under the aforesaid paragraph.
- M. It is further expressly understood that the provisions herein shall be used in the event of illness only, pursuant to the collective bargaining agreement.

N. Sick Time Incentive Program

- 1. An officer using fifty-six (56) or less sick hours in the calendar year shall be compensated for the unused hours at the rate of ten dollars (\$10.00) per eight hours. Payment will be made to the member by March 31st of the following year.
- 2. An officer using twenty-four (24) or less sick hours in the calendar year shall be compensated for the unused hours at the rate of fifteen dollars (\$15.00) per eight hours. Payment will be made to the member by March 31st of the following year.
 - 3. Unused sick hours will continue to accumulate.

To be eligible for this benefit, the employee must be in service as of January 1 of the year benefits are calculated.

O. Sick Time Buy Back

An officer who as of the first of the calendar year has accumulated four hundred (400) or more sick hours, shall have the option for that

year of being paid forty dollars for every eight sick hours not used with no accumulation for hours which payment is made. The officer may decline payment and permit unused sick leave hours to accumulate. If this benefit is selected, payment will be made to the member by March 31st of the following year. If selected, application shall be made to the personnel office at least thirty (30) days prior to the aforementioned date.

P. Sick Leave / Deferred Comp

The Township agrees to a deferred compensation plan wherein sick time in excess of 150 accrued hours may be sold back to the Township at 85% value. Accrued time shall be the time accrued as of 12/31 of each year. The Township would then deposit payment into the Officers Township sponsored deferred compensation plan. The maximum allowable benefit shall not exceed six thousand dollars (\$6,000.00) per year. The employee shall request in writing to the Township Finance Officer by December 31st and payment shall be disbursed in equal payments beginning with the first pay period in April of the following year. All deposits shall conform to the current I.R.S regulations. Effective January 1, 2020, the maximum allowable benefit shall be increased to \$10,000.00.



PERSONAL LEAVE

- A. In addition to the normal vacation schedule contained in Article 8, each member of the PBA shall be entitled to three (3) days personal leave per year. A "day" shall be determined by the Officers normal daily work period as agreed upon in the employee's respective division assignment. Probationary Officers will be provided with Personal Days as follows:
 - 1. Officers hired in January, February, March and April will be entitled to 3 personal days.
 - 2. Officers hired in May, June, July and August will be entitled to 2 personal days.
 - 3. Officers hired in September, October, November and December will be entitled to 1 personal day.

Effective September 30, 2019, excluding holidays, at least two officers per squad shall be permitted off on personal leave and same shall not be denied by the Township.

- B. Personal leave may be used for, but not necessarily be limited to, concluding real estate transactions, family affairs, illness of a member of the immediate family (including grandmothers and grandfathers and those relatives residing in the same household), out- of-town family business trips (non-funeral), meetings not related to job or professional duties, medical appointments, and funerals not covered under funeral leave.
 - C. Personal leave is not cumulative.
- D. Requests for personal leave shall be submitted to and approved by the Department Head or designee at least three (3) days in advance, except in unusual circumstances.



LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence without pay and without benefits paid may be granted for good cause to an employee for a period of up to one (1) year. In addition, the Township may extend a leave of absence without pay and without benefits paid beyond one year for a three (3) month period, which may be renewed, but the total of any leave of absence shall not exceed a second year.



STAND-BY-DUTY

- A. Each member of the PBA who is notified that he/she has been placed on stand-by-duty, during off-duty hours, shall be entitled to three (3) hours' pay at the rate of time and one-half (1-1/2) for each twenty-four hour (24) hour period or any part thereof, with payment to be made for at least three (3) hours if he/she is called into police headquarters. (That is, he/she shall be paid for any three (3) hours of any twenty-four (24) hour period or part thereof). Officers placed on stand-by must be notified when they are released by the shift commander.
- B. Stand-by pay as it relates to Detectives and members of the Traffic Bureau on weekends shall be limited to the forty-eight (48) hour period as comprised of Saturday and Sunday. Said Detectives/Traffic Bureau members shall be compensated at a rate of six (6) hours pay at time and one-half (1-1/2).
- C. Detectives and members of the Traffic Bureau, if called in on weekends, shall be guaranteed the entirety of the stand-by pay (B) and, in addition, any hours actually worked at time and one-half (11.1).
- D. Stand-by pay shall not be interpreted to include on-call court subpoenas.
- E. All police officers shall be guaranteed a minimum of four (4) hours at a rate of time and one-half (11/2) for actual court appearances on their time off, even if this minimum four (4) hour court time overlaps with the start of their shift.
- F. In the event an employee is required to answer or respond to after hour telephone calls while off-duty as a part of their regular duties, they shall be guaranteed a minimum of two (2) hours at a rate of one and one half (1-1/2)



TUITION BENEFITS

- A. An employee pursuing an Associate Degree, Bachelor's Degree or a Master's Degree in a police related or public administration field shall be reimbursed not in excess of the current in state per credit cost at Rutgers University, New Brunswick campus upon successful completion of the course.
- B. Successful completion shall mean the attainment of a "C" grade or better during a course of study in the aforementioned fields.
- C. A prerequisite for reimbursement of other courses of study is that the Township Manager approves it before the employee shall be eligible for same.
- D. Upon submission of documentation, the Officer shall be reimbursed up to \$100.00 for the purchase of required textbooks.
- E. The following educational stipend schedule shall apply to those Officers who have obtained a degree from an accredited College or University. The stipend shall be paid in equal payments by the 1st day of March and the 1st day of September of each year. The stipend shall only be paid for the highest degree attained. In lieu of direct payment, the Officer may choose to deposit the stipend in two equal lump sum payments (as per dates above) to the Township sponsored Deferred Compensation Plan.

Associates Degree \$1000.00 Bachelor's degree \$2000.00 Master's degree \$3000.00

F. Effective January 1, 2013, employees hired prior to January 1, 2012 must annually elect to receive the tuition reimbursement as identified in paragraph A or receive the degree stipend as identified in paragraph E. The employee's election must be made by December 1 of the prior year.



Effective February 10, 2015, employees hired after January 1, 2012 the educational stipend shall be as set forth in this paragraph. The employee must annually elect to receive the tuition reimbursement as identified in paragraph A or the degree stipend as identified below. The employee's election must be made by December 1 of the prior year. Employees hired prior to December 1st shall only select payment of the educational stipend in the first calendar year of employment, which payments shall be prorated (hired after July 1 50% payment):

Associates Degree \$250.00 Bachelor's degree \$500.00



Article 15

CONDUCTING ASSOCIATION BUSINESS

- A. The Township shall grant time off without loss of pay to the Legislative State Delegate of the New Jersey PBA, to attend monthly PBA Local 154 meetings, state and/or county conference meetings or scheduled tri-county conference meetings which require their attendance. The Delegate shall be able to designate the P.B.A. President to attend any such meetings in the event he/she is unable to attend. The Delegate shall be granted a total of ten (10) additional paid days off per year providing the time coincides with their regularly scheduled workdays, for Association business.
- B. If the regular scheduled tours of duty are on a day of a meeting, then the delegate shall be excused for that day's tour of duty or, if regular scheduled tours of duty are between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. the day after the meeting then, at the delegate's option, he/she shall be entitled to his/her choice of day off.
- C. The P.B.A. President or designee shall be granted a total of ten (10) paid days off per year providing the time coincides with their regularly scheduled workdays, for Association business. It is further understood that these leave days are not cumulative on a year-to-year basis. The Union shall request these days at least seven (7) days in advance, unless emergent need exists. In addition, the P.B.A. President shall be granted the day off to attend PBA Local 154 monthly meetings if they are scheduled on a day that the P.B.A. President is scheduled to work.





GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definition:

A grievance within the meaning of this Agreement shall mean a difference of opinion or dispute arising between the Township and the PBA or between the Township and an employee concerning rates of pay, wages, hours or employment, or concerning the interpretation and application of this Agreement and conditions of employment.

B. Purpose:

The purpose of the procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administration level, equitable solutions to the problems that may arise from time to time.

C. Procedure:

Since it is important that grievances be processed as rapidly as possible, the number of days indicated at each level should be considered as a maximum, and every effort should be made to expedite the process. The time limits specified, however, may be extended by mutual agreement.

- 1. Any party in interest may be represented at all stages of this grievance procedure by himself/herself or any representative of his/her choosing. When an employee is not represented by the PBA, the PBA shall have the right to be present and to state its view at all stages of the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 2. The following procedure must be initiated by either party and shall be followed within twenty (20) calendar days computed from the date of the occurrence being grieved or within twenty (20) working days from reasonably knowing of the event.
- a. Level One: The employee and the chairman of the PBA. Grievance Committee or the employee individually shall meet with the Division Commander. In the event the grievance is not settled at Level One or if no decision is delivered by the Division Commander within seven (7) working days, both parties shall complete and sign the proper form and forward it for action at the next step in the procedure.
 - b. Level Two: The P.B.A. President or designee and the PBA Grievance Committee Chairman, along with the employee, or the

employee individually, shall meet with the Chief of Police to discuss the grievance within seven (7) working days.

- c. Level Three: The P.B.A. President or designee and the PBA Grievance Committee Chairman, along with the employee, or the employee individually, shall meet with the Township Manager to discuss the grievance within seven (7) working days.
- d. Level Four: If a settlement is not reached pursuant to Level Three, either party may elect to submit the grievance to arbitration. However, the party requesting arbitration shall give notice to the other party of its intention to arbitrate. The matter shall be submitted to arbitration within ninety (90) days from the Township Manager Decision in Level Three in the following manner:
 - (i) A request for an arbitrator shall be made to the Public Employment Relations Commission or the New Jersey State Board of Mediation according to the rules and regulations of each respective agency. The parties are to be bound by the procedure of the selected agency.
 - (ii) The arbitrator shall have no authority to change, modify, alter, substitute, add to or subtract from the provisions of this agreement.
- (a) The arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of this agreement and by the applicable laws of the state of New Jersey and the United States. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to any amendment or supplement thereto. The arbitrator's decision shall be set forth in writing and shall indicate his/her findings of fact and reasons for the decision and be rendered within thirty (30) days after the final date of the hearing. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding upon the parties subject to applicable court proceedings.
- (b) Either party may direct the arbitrator to decide, as preliminary question whether he has jurisdiction to hear and decide the matter in dispute.
 - (iii) The cost of the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally between the PBA and the Township. Any other expenses incurred, including but limited to the presentation of witnesses, shall be paid by the party incurring same.

3. Miscellaneous:

- a. If, in the judgment of the PBA Grievance Committee, a grievance affects a group of employees, the Committee may submit such grievance in writing to the Township Manager directly and the processing of such grievance shall commence at Level Three.
- b. Decisions rendered at any level of the grievance procedure shall be in writing, setting forth the decision and the reasons therefore, and shall be transmitted promptly to all parties in interest and the Chairman of the PBA Grievance Committee.
- c. Forms for filing grievances and notices of hearings shall be prepared jointly by PBA and the Township Manager and given appropriate distribution.
- d. All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public and shall include only such parties in interest and their designated or selected representatives.



SEPARABILITY CLAUSE

In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall at any time be declared invalid by any legislative act or any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not invalidate the entire Agreement, it being the express intent of the parties hereto that all other provisions not declared invalid shall remain in full force and effect.



Article 18

MEDICAL BENEFITS

A. The Township agrees to provide the following benefits to each member of the PBA and their eligible dependents as defined in the respective health benefits contracts. The Township agrees that in the event an improved health insurance package is obtained during the term of this Agreement that the members of the PBA shall receive the new health benefit coverage.

NOTE 1: If during the term of this contract the Township makes other health plans or changes to the above named plans available to other bargaining units, such plans will also be made available to the employees covered by this collective bargaining agreement.

NOTE 2: After consultations with the Union, the Township may change the vendor for any of the above-named plans as long as the services and out-of-pocket costs to the employees are equivalent or better for the employees

NOTE 3: The Township agrees that in advance of establishing any new health insurance plans it will afford the PBA the opportunity to meet with the Township's Broker or Insurance Consultant to review items of concern to the PBA. The Township agrees that they will be vigilant in seeking cost savings benefits for the health insurance plan.

Effective July 1, 2007

MEDICAL PPO Plan 1 or 2

DENTAL Dental Option Plan Dental Choice (DMO)

Cigna Dental (DMO)

OPTICAL: \$150 reimbursement per employee family per annum

DISABILITY: The Standard

PRESCRIPTION Non-formulary, \$0 co-pay for generic, \$4 co-pay f

or brand name.

DISABILITY: Township pays 50% and all employees pay 50%.

All active employees who elect the OMNIA or EPO health plans (or equivalent replacement plans) shall be required to contribute 1.5% of his/her pensionable base salary toward the cost of health benefits. All other active employees shall contribute to the cost of their health care benefits in accordance with the Schedule established by P.L., c. 78



(commonly referred to as "Chapter 78"). Health benefits shall include hospitalization; major-medical; prescription; and dental coverage.

Section 1.

- A. The Township has established a plan under Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code to provide a tax-free stipend under the Township ordinance to those employees who have medical coverage elsewhere and who elect not to enroll in the Township's medical, dental, or prescription plans. Under the Section 125 plan, the employee shall receive 40% of the amount the Township would have paid for enrolling the employee in the plan or plans.
- B. Effective July 1,2000, the Township will expand its Section 125 plan to allow employees to establish flexible spending accounts to which they may contribute or pay for health and other expenses as allowed under the Internal Revenue code. Up to the amounts allowed annually under the Internal Revenue Code, employees may pay into these flexible spending accounts from their salary or wages or additionally from their stipend under sub-section A of this section. Additionally, effective July 1, 2000, under the Section 125 plan any employee who elects a less expensive medical plan than the one for which they are eligible may receive 40% of the Township's premium savings. This 40% may be placed in a flexible spending account to pay for other allowable benefits or may be paid out as provided under the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 2.

Employees retiring with twenty-five (25) years in the New Jersey pension system (PFRS) (including their eligible dependents as defined in the respective health benefits contracts) shall have the right to enroll in and receive the medical, prescription and dental benefits for which they are eligible under this agreement.

Section 3.

Effective February 10, 2015, retiree benefits as provided for in Section 2 above will be extended to police officers who receive an accidental disability retirement from the Police and Fire Retirement



System on or after January 1, 2010. There will be no retroactive payment made for any benefits.

All eligible retirees pursuant to Sections 2 and 3 shall not be required to contribute any amount to the cost of health care benefits for themselves and eligible dependents provided they: (1) had fifteen (15) years of PFRS service credit as of June 28, 2011, regardless of the particular health care plan elected; or (2) elect the OMNIA or EPO health plans (or equivalent replacement plans), regardless of their respective PFRS service credit as of June 28, 2011. This provision shall be applied prospectively. That is, those employees (including Frank Gianotto and Drewery Lea) who retired prior to September 30, 2019 and possessed fifteen (15) years of PFRS service credit as of June 28, 2011 shall be entitled to no cost health benefits on a go forward basis regardless of the particular health care plan elected. Health benefits shall include hospitalization; major-medical; prescription; and dental coverage.

Section 4.

If an Officer is killed in the line of duty as defined by the New Jersey Police and Firemen's Pension System, the Officers spouse and eligible dependents shall receive the Medical Benefits the Officer was entitled to as outlined above until the spouse remarries or dies.

Section 5 - Retirement

In the event a retired employee dies leaving eligible dependents, the eligible dependents may opt to continue coverage previously received, provided that the dependents were covered by this Article at the time of the employee's retirement and are not otherwise eligible for medical benefits from his/her employers.



HOLIDAYS

A. Members of the PBA shall receive compensation for the following days designated by the Township:

New Year's Day

Martin Luther King's Birthday

President's Birthday (Washington)

Good Friday

Memorial Day

Independence Day

Labor Day

General Election Day (first Tuesday after the first Monday

in November)

Veteran's Day

Thanksgiving Day

Friday after Thanksgiving Day

Christmas Eve Day

Christmas Day

- B. Holiday pay has been calculated and added to the member's base pay (Article 5, Wages) and is included in his/her regularly scheduled compensation payments.
- C. All sworn personnel, if scheduled to work any holiday as designated in paragraph "A" may be eligible for "Holiday Off". Any officer who utilizes "Holiday Off" shall be compensated at his/her regular rate of pay for that tour of duty and, therefore, shall forfeit the additional four (4) hour holiday pay. One detective from each of the two shifts must work the holiday. If/when exigent circumstances arise, it shall be management's prerogative to increase minimum staffing as needed.
- D. Due to police officers working shift work, holiday pay shall be computed as follows:
- 1. A holiday is defined as the twenty-four (24) hour period beginning at 12:01 a.m. and ending at 11:59 p.m. on those calendar dates officially designated as holidays by a resolution of the Township

Council, except that Christmas Eve—December 24, Christmas Day—December 25, New Year's Day—January 1, and Independence Day—July 4 will be the actual holidays rather than the days designated by the Township Council; and

- 2. When physically working a holiday, an officer shall be paid at the rate of one and one-half (1 1/2) times his/her regular rate of pay in addition to his/her regular two weeks salary.
- 3. Any officer working overtime during the twenty-four (24) hour holiday period outlined in Paragraph D (1) above, shall be compensated at the rate of two and one-half (2 1/2) times his/her regular hourly rate of pay for all time actually worked during said holiday period.



FUNERAL BENEFITS

- A. Members of the PBA shall be entitled to five (5) days off with pay at the straight time rate in the event of the death of a member's spouse, child, or parent and, effective October 1, 2014 ,parent-in-law, grandparent, sister, brother, grandchild, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, or anyone who shares a domicile with the member.
- B. A "day" shall be determined by the Officers normal workday schedule within their respective division assignment.



FUNERAL DETAIL

In the event a police officer is killed in the line of duty in the State of New Jersey, the Township and the PBA will designate two (2) members of the PBA to attend the officer's funeral. One representative will be chosen by the Chief of Police and one by the PBA Local 154 President.



EXPENSES

The Township shall reimburse members of the PBA for meals and mileage expenses incurred on official duty by monthly voucher at a rate equal to the prevailing I.R.S. allowable deduction for mileage and Ten dollars (\$10.00) for meals.



PERSONNEL FILES

- A. A separate personnel history file shall be established and maintained for each employee covered by this Agreement. Personnel history files are confidential records and shall be maintained in the Assistant Township Manager's office and the Chief of Police's office.
- B. Each employee shall have the right to inspect and review his or her own individual personnel file, upon request to the Employer. The Employer recognizes and agrees to permit this review and examination at any reasonable time. Employees shall have the right to a photocopy, define, explain, or object to in writing anything found in his/her personnel file, and this writing shall become part of the employee's personnel file. Such response must occur within ten (10) days of recovery in file or be waived.
- C. All personnel history files shall be carefully maintained and safeguarded.
- D. Employees shall receive a copy of each derogatory or disciplinary document being placed in his or her personnel file within ten (10) days. The employee shall sign off and date any document given to him, and have the right to place a written rebuttal response to any and all disciplinary documents contained in the personnel file.
- E. The Assistant Township Manager and the Chief of Police shall maintain official personnel files. No other official file or personnel record will be maintained. However, it is agreed that a departmental reference file will be maintained for day-to-day reference and shall not be used in disciplinary hearings.



MISCELLANEOUS

Both parties agree to be bound by all statutory and judicial decisions, and each party has all of the rights and privileges set forth in such statutes and judicial decisions where applicable to the parties hereto. Also, effective January 1, 2020, the number of training days shall be increased to five (5) 5-hour days per calendar year. Additionally, officers who work during any time when the Township's municipal offices are closed for non-essential personnel due to state of emergency, inclement weather, etc., shall receive additional hour-for-hour comp time. This shall only apply to officers who work during otherwise normal business hours of the Township's municipal offices.



MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

The Township hereby retains and reserves unto itself without Limitations all powers, rights, authorities, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by law with respect to the management and direction of the police department, including but not limited to, the right to hire, promote, transfer, discharge, discipline and direct the members of the Franklin Township Police Department, except as may be limited by the provisions of this agreement as well as by law.



Article 26

TERM OF CONTRACT

- A. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect retroactively to January 1, 2019 through the period ending December 31, 2023 and shall continue until such time as the parties reach a new agreement.
- B. The PBA shall, at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement, which shall be **November** 1, 2023 submit in writing its intention to open negotiations and shall include as part of said notice a list of all items which it intends to negotiate, subject to any determination during the interim period, which shall be between the date of ratification of this Agreement and the expiration date of same, and any change mutually agreed to by the parties herein.
- C. The Township agrees to provide each member of the PBA with a copy of the Collective Bargaining Agreement at no expense to the PBA.



SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Township and the PBA have caused this Agreement to be signed by their duly authorized representatives the day and year written, next to their signatures below.

\mathcal{A}	TOWNSHIP OF FRANKLIN
ву:	Date
ATTEST:	Date_10-08-21

ATTEST:

POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION OF FRANKLIN TOWNSHIP LOCAL NO. 154

By: P.B.A President

P.B.A President

P.B. President

Run Marie Mc Ca

Date 10 6 21